

WASHINGTON STATE REDISTRICTING COMMISSION

VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT OF

PUBLIC OUTREACH MEETING

RE: THE 4TH CONGRESSIONAL DISTRICT

VIA ZOOM

Consisting of pages 1 to 50

June 5, 2021

Taken Before:

SUE E. GARCIA, WA CCR # 2781, RMR

Registered Merit Reporter

of

Capitol Pacific Reporting, Inc.

2401 Bristol Court SW, #C-103, Olympia, WA 98502

Tel (360) 352-2054 Fax (360) 705-6539

Toll Free (800) 407-0148

e-mail: admin@capitolpacificreporting.com

www.capitolpacificreporting.com

1		APPEARANCES
2	SARAH AUGUSTINE	- CHAIRWOMAN
3	JOE FAIN	- COMMISSIONER
4	PAUL GRAVES	- COMMISSIONER
5	APRIL SIMS	- COMMISSIONER
6	BRADY PIÑERO WALKINSHAW	- COMMISSIONER
7	LISA MCLEAN	- EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
8	JAMIE NIXON	- COMMUNICATIONS DIRECTOR
9	DANIEL PAILTHORP	- PUBLIC OUTREACH COORDINATOR
10	SEAN MURRAY	- DIGITAL MEDIA AND COMMUNICATIONS
11	MARIA GARZA	- ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT

12

13

14

15

16

17 NOTE:

18 (indiscernible) = words heard but not understood

19 (phonetic) = phonetic spelling of name

20 (as read) = not an exact quotation of
document, paraphrased or not
verified with source document

21
22 (audio disruption) = digital platform audio feed
break or garbled transmission

23

(allotted time elapsed) = Two minutes of time allowed per
24 person ran out; testifier's
audio was muted

25

	INDEX	
	BY:	PAGE
1		
2		
3	Opening remarks by Chairwoman Sarah Augustine	5
4	PUBLIC COMMENT	
5	Mr. Esteban Ortiz	11
6	Ms. Margot Spindola	14
7	Mr. Shir Regev	16
8	Ms. Lin Crowley	18
9	Mr. Mathew Tomaskin	19
10	Ms. Roxanne Bryson	21
11	Mr. Giovanni Severino	21
12	Ms. Sheila Avila	24
13	Mr. Craig Maloney	25
14	Ms. Zahra Roach	27
15	Ms. Pamela Gaudet	31
16	Mr. Jeffrey Robinson	32
17	Mr. Jacob Dorsey	34
18	Mr. David Morales	36
19	Ms. Blanche Barajas	38
20	Ms. Dori Peralta Baker	40
21	Mr. Randy Hayden	41
22	Mr. Andrew Hong	42
23	Mr. John Kennedy	45
24		
25		

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

INDEX
(continued)

BY:	PAGE
Closing remarks by Commissioner Simms	46
Closing remarks by Commissioner Walkinshaw	47
Closing remarks by Commissioner Graves	47
Closing remarks by Commissioner Fain	48
Closing remarks by Chair Augustine	48

1 BE IT REMEMBERED that on Saturday, June 5, 2021, at
2 10:00 a.m., before Sue E. Garcia, Washington State
3 Certified Court Reporter, residing at Tacoma,
4 Washington, the following proceedings were had, to wit:

5

6

* * * * *

7

8 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Good morning. I'm Sarah
9 Augustine, the Chair of the Washington State
10 Redistricting Commission. I would like to welcome
11 everyone to this public outreach meeting, the fourth
12 one of this 2021 redistricting cycle.

13 The topic of discussion this morning is
14 Congressional District 4 and the legislative districts
15 included within it.

16 I have more to say about that later. But first
17 let's kick things off with a video message from the
18 commissioners.

19

(Video playing.)

20

21 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank, you Maria.

22 To those of you from the public joining us today,
23 welcome again. It is my goal as chair to facilitate a
24 process that is as participatory, fair, and equitable
25 as possible. I will endeavor to engage communities

1 across Washington as fully as I can and to hear and
2 address your concerns and requests.

3 Throughout our tenure as commissioners we will
4 hear public comments that are important. We will
5 listen to you. I will do my best to synthesize the
6 comments. And we will endeavor to respond as we are
7 able.

8 Still, it is possible that you will bring forward
9 in your public comments ideas, requests, and injustices
10 that we may not be able to address. We will certainly
11 deliberate on the issues where we do have jurisdiction.
12 Where we don't I will do my best to refer you to those
13 who may be able to respond more effectively.

14 I want to begin by reviewing the purpose and
15 values of the commission. Together as a commission we
16 have agreed to the following values and mission:

17 To provide an open, transparent, credible process
18 that is grounded in statute and where all voices are
19 welcome; there's access for everyone;

20 To conduct ourselves with transparency, respect,
21 and civility, where commissioners will participate and
22 negotiate in good-faith;

23 To meet the deadline outlined by law;

24 And to produce the best possible maps for
25 everyone.

1 I would also like to review the purpose of today's
2 meeting. You may be aware that because of the pandemic
3 this redistricting cycle promises to be a challenging
4 one. While we should have received data from the
5 Census Bureau by April 1st of this year, we don't
6 expect to have that data until late August.

7 Nonetheless, in late April the Census Bureau did
8 deliver to the President and the nation the
9 apportionment data, which told us that states will gain
10 seats in the U.S. Congress and electoral college and
11 which would not. Based on that data we know that the
12 last decade the population of our state grew by
13 14.6 percent and added approximately 1 million
14 residents.

15 Despite that population growth, it did not change
16 the number of congressional seats we're entitled to.
17 Washington will continue to have ten representatives in
18 the U.S. House of Representatives.

19 Based on the population growth in the state, our
20 job as the redistricting commission is to distribute as
21 equally as is practical the population among ten
22 congressional districts and 49 legislative districts.

23 Based on the apportionment data provided in April,
24 Washington had a population of 7,705,281 residents as
25 of April 1, 2020. Therefore, we need to draw ten new

1 congressional districts that are compact, contiguous,
2 and convenient, and made up of approximately 770,528
3 residents, and 49 new legislative districts that are
4 also compact, contiguous, and convenient, and made up
5 of approximately \$157,251 residents.

6 Statute also instructs us, insofar as it is
7 practical to minimize drawing district lines that cut
8 through counties, municipalities, or communities of
9 interest. And the commission is committed to applying
10 these principles while we try to create equally
11 proportioned districts.

12 So while we know the overall population of the
13 state according to the census, we don't yet know the
14 particulars of percentage growth across neighborhoods,
15 towns, cities, and counties.

16 State population estimates of the last ten years
17 do give us a relatively good idea of where our
18 7.7 million residents live and which districts will
19 need to get larger in area to add more residents and
20 which districts will need to get smaller in order to
21 shed residents. And as we add or subtracts neighbors
22 from one district, it will cause the need to make
23 corresponding adjustments in the neighboring districts.

24 So we want to show you broadly --

25 And I wanted to ask Maria if you could show the

1 first map.

2 This map shows Washington state and its ten
3 congressional districts. The darker the brown colors,
4 the more the districts need to grow in size. And the
5 darker the teal colors the more the districts need to
6 shrink in size.

7 So regarding the topic of discussion today, the
8 4th Congressional District, the map indicates that it
9 currently has less than the needed 770,000 residents to
10 make it proportional. It will need to find additional
11 residents.

12 Now the next slide, please, Maria.

13 The 4th Congressional District includes all of the
14 Legislative Districts 8 and 15 and parts of Legislative
15 District 7, 9, 12, 13, 14, and 16.

16 Based on state population estimates we can see
17 that the 9th -- the 8th, 9th, and 13th Legislative
18 Districts have more than 157,000 residents in the
19 districts, meaning they will have to lose some of their
20 residents, while the 7th, 14th, and 15th, and less
21 so the 12th and 16th, will have less than the
22 needed 157,000 residents and will, therefore, need to
23 add a few more residents to absorb.

24 Thank you, Maria.

25 So that's just a brief overview of the challenge

1 that your redistricting commission faces this year. In
2 essence, commissioners have to create a new puzzle out
3 of the state, and the puzzle pieces have to contain
4 nearly exactly the same population. As we make one
5 puzzle piece smaller, it's adjacent puzzle pieces will
6 need to absorb those additional areas, meaning every
7 time a boundary is moved, it creates a cascade of
8 changes in surrounding districts.

9 So the purpose of our meeting today is to listen
10 to your input about your community and how to ensure
11 that the districts are fairly balanced in terms of
12 population but also respect shared community interests.
13 The commission may not be able to meet every interest,
14 but as commissioners try to weigh the trade-offs
15 inherent in this process, your opinions are welcome and
16 valued.

17 This morning we have approximately 30 individuals
18 who have signed up to testify. We're going to invite
19 individuals in groups of four to come forward to
20 testify. Each individual will have two minutes to
21 offer their comments. After four people have
22 testified, we will see if the commissioners have any
23 questions of those four testifiers. And then we will
24 move on to the next group of testifiers.

25 With that summary, Sean, let's begin. Please call

1 the first panel.

2 MR. MURRAY: Good morning, commissioners.

3 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Good morning.

4 MR. MURRAY: For our first panel we will have
5 Esteban Ortiz, Sandra Vaughn, Margot Spindola, and Shir
6 Regev. So we're going to start with Esteban.

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

8 MR. MURRAY: Esteban, once you've reached
9 the --

10 Please turn on your video and begin your
11 testimony.

12 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

13 MR. E. ORTIZ: Okay. Good morning.

14 As a person who moved out here in October 2019 and
15 as a person of Mexican American descent, I think the
16 biggest thing that to me kind of stood out -- and who
17 has also worked on the U.S. Census Bureau before -- and
18 I think like the commissioner just said -- and I think
19 it's a big concern, especially by the --

20 The Mexican American League of Defense has put it
21 out that the citizenship question -- and I think it
22 would use some common sense and knowledge, is that all
23 that data might be missing -- you know, especially, I
24 think, still to look at because, I think, looking at
25 the -- at the picture of people responding to the

1 census, I think this was one of the areas that --
2 especially the 4th Congressional District where we had
3 the least responsive rate.

4 So just to keep that in mind and please apply some
5 common sense especially because of the impacts that
6 that citizenship question and the whole debate around
7 it had and, I think, how it impacted here in the 4th
8 Congressional District.

9 So thank you, commissioners, and thank you,
10 everybody, for putting this on. Appreciate it.

11 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you very much for
12 taking the time to share with us this morning.

13 Sean?

14 MR. MURRAY: Yes. Our next testifier will be
15 Sandra Vaughn, if you don't mind turning on your video
16 and beginning your testimony.

17 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Good morning.

18 MR. MURRAY: Sandra, you're still muted.

19 MS. S. VAUGHN: Thank you. Thank you.

20 Is that better?

21 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Yes.

22 MS. S. VAUGHN: Okay. I live in the Oroville
23 area of Okanogan County, the largest district in the
24 state.

25 Up here in the northernmost part of our district,

1 we feel pretty left out of the political process as our
2 representative from the Yakima area rarely has town
3 halls in our area, and this was even before COVID, and
4 our issues here up in the north half are not the same
5 as in the southern part of our district.

6 As well, it is difficult for us to elect a more
7 local representative as we just do not have the
8 population necessary to carry a vote.

9 So I understand that one of the redistribution
10 proposals is to do away with artificial division of our
11 native reservations, a proposal I strongly encourage.
12 I feel the division was put in place precisely to
13 divide the powers of the native vote and needs to be
14 eliminated as undemocratic.

15 I live on the old north half of the Colville
16 Tribes reservation, removed from tribal control in 1892
17 by the federal government. And I would like the
18 redistricting commission to consider removing this
19 former north half from CD 4 and including it into the
20 redrawn Colville Reservation district. I feel our
21 needs here in the northern district much more closely
22 align with those in the Colville Reservation district.

23 I look forward to your response. And I thank you
24 for the opportunity to be able to speak on this issue
25 of increasing representation of the north half of our

1 district. Thank you.

2 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you very much.

3 Sean?

4 MR. MURRAY: Next we have Margaret -- or
5 Margot Spindola. I apologize.

6 MS. M. SPINDOLA: No problem. Margot
7 Spindola. Thank you.

8 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Good morning.

9 MS. M. SPINDOLA: Good morning.

10 Good morning, Commissioners Graves, Fain, Simms,
11 Piñero Walkinshaw. Thank you for allowing me to speak
12 before you today.

13 My name is Margot Spindola. I care deeply about
14 the people in this district. I grew up in the 8th and
15 16th Districts for most of my life, the Tri-Cities
16 area.

17 I'm also a member of Redistricting Justice for
18 Washington Coalition, a coalition of over 30
19 organizations that have come together to ensure equity
20 in this redistricting process for all people of
21 Washington.

22 So no matter what we look like or where we live,
23 we shouldn't need to worry about the rigging of the
24 redistricting game to cater to politicians' interests
25 because everyone deserves equal resources. And I

1 believe you have the opportunity to create something
2 with that input.

3 Sorry. I'll slow down for the ASL interpreter.

4 I'm here today to stand alongside the residents in
5 the 4th Congressional District and voice the priorities
6 of our coalition.

7 Currently the Latino and indigenous communities in
8 the City of Yakima, Yakima County, and the Yakima
9 Nation are split between the 14th and the 15th
10 Legislative Districts. And this divides communities of
11 color and dilutes their political power. So to keep
12 communities of interest together there needs to be a
13 legislative district that encompasses the following:

14 First, Latino communities in the City of Yakima
15 covering the vast majority of the city, especially
16 Yakima;

17 Second, it needs to encompass the largely Latino
18 Yakima Valley community south of the City of Yakima
19 expanding the eastern boundary of Yakima County. Also,
20 all of Yakima Nation in its entirety, including the
21 fishing villages in Klickitat County;

22 And for the congressional district we ask that you
23 keep the Colville Nation intact.

24 I ask that you keep the priorities of community
25 members here in mind. We've been diligently meeting as

1 a collective to bring you these concerns. We also ask
2 you to be accountable to tribal consultation as you
3 work to create maps to map our future through fair
4 districts.

5 Thank you.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you very much for
7 your time -- for spending this time with us this
8 morning.

9 Sean?

10 MR. MURRAY: Our final panelist will be Shir
11 Regev. Sorry if I'm mispronouncing your last name.

12 MR. S. REGEV: No worries.

13 Good morning. My name is Shir Regev. And I do
14 want to thank the commission for providing us with this
15 opportunity voice our input.

16 In order to not recreate the wheel, I agree
17 wholeheartedly with what the first three testifiers
18 have added.

19 What I do want to mention is I have seen a
20 proposed redistricting that would actually place
21 southeastern Washington pretty much like from Klickitat
22 County down to the borders with Oregon and Idaho in the
23 5th Congressional District. But whatever district it
24 falls under, I do see the need to compress the
25 district.

1 Currently, the 4th CD goes so far north that it is
2 hard to identify candidates who can run. If you are
3 younger or have a family or don't have the financial
4 resources to be able to canvass such a large area, this
5 proposed redistricting helps level the playing field
6 and helps us get better representation to Washington,
7 D.C., to address needs of constituents because, if you
8 look historically, people elected into the current 4th
9 Congressional District as it's drawn are not
10 necessarily representative of the entire district. And
11 it becomes reflected in the decisions that are made as
12 far as, you know, what gets filtered back to us from
13 Washington, D.C.

14 So I think this redistricting also creates
15 opportunities for the type of representation we're
16 allowed to send to our nation's capital. And that is
17 also very important.

18 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. All right. So
19 I would like to ask the commissioners if they have
20 questions or comments for the panelists.

21 (No audible response.)

22 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Seeing none, I would
23 like to excuse the panel. Thank you for your time this
24 morning.

25 And, Sean, please call the next panel.

1 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, Chair. Our next
2 panel will be Lin Crowley, Mathew Tomaskin, Roxanne
3 Bryson, and then Giovanni Severino.

4 Lin, if you don't mind turning on your video and
5 starting your testimony.

6 MS. L. CROWLEY: Hello. Can you see me okay?

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Yes. Welcome.

8 MS. L. CROWLEY: Thank you so much for
9 allowing me to speak a little bit. And I wanted to
10 also express my thanks to the commissioners and also
11 all of the folks who are helping to organize this
12 particular event.

13 I am from Congressional District 10. So our area
14 actually have a pretty good redrawing happen in the
15 previous term. So we are to the really asking for some
16 new changes made.

17 However, as someone who is a very concerned about
18 having more input from the general communities and
19 making sure people are aware of the redistricting, I
20 wanted to just say a few words today to just help
21 express our general hopes. And that is that
22 redistricting really cannot be such a difficult thing
23 for us to really share with the community if it can
24 become a live mapping things that people will be able
25 to access online.

1 And this is something I'm most particularly
2 interested in, you know, because I am working with
3 media. And I hear a lot.

4 And this is something I know we already have the
5 technologies to be able to do. And I certainly hope
6 that that is something that we will be able to see
7 moving forward that can be accomplished and more people
8 will be able to kind of learn about redistricting
9 process.

10 Thank you so much again for setting this up.

11 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. Thank you for
12 your comments.

13 Sean, please call the next panelist.

14 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely. Our next panelist
15 will be Mathew Tomaskin.

16 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

17 MR. M. TOMASKIN: (Speaking foreign
18 language.)

19 And my English name is Mathew Tomaskin. I'm a
20 citizen of the Yakima Nation. And I took part in this
21 process ten years ago. And I'm very glad and excited
22 to see the commission as it stands today.

23 Ten years ago, unfortunately, the commission was
24 status quo. And as we usually see in the government,
25 it's a bunch old white guys. And that's what we saw

1 last time, and the end result is what we got.

2 And the funny part about that was when they came
3 to Yakima, being all white, they didn't know that they
4 were coming to the harvest bowl of Washington when they
5 came to Yakima. We have a highly integrated, highly
6 interracial community here in Yakima Valley. We have
7 migrant workers. We have people who come here and
8 harvest the fruit and take care of the fruit and what
9 have you.

10 So that's what they forgot. So they didn't bring
11 an interpreter. So they had to divide the room into
12 two, and it was somewhat distracting trying to testify
13 and listen, you know, to the background noise of the
14 interpreter.

15 So I commend the commission, with the exception of
16 the rapist. I know that we can do better in the
17 future.

18 And I've heard before -- just before I came on,
19 you know, that we would like to keep the Yakima
20 Nation --

21 (Allotted time elapsed.)

22 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Tomaskin. I
23 am sorry that your time has run out. Please stay there
24 so the commissioners will be able to ask you questions
25 if they so choose at the end of your panel.

1 Sean, if you'd call the next panelist, please.

2 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, Chair.

3 Our next is going to be Roxanne Bryson. If you
4 can turn on your video and begin your testimony please.

5 MS. R. BRYSON: Hi. Good morning.

6 I primarily wanted to make -- to make sure there
7 was diversity in our redistricting. I come from Kitsap
8 County, transplanted over here last summer. And I had
9 a very healthy relationship with the Suquamish Tribe
10 and the Klallam Tribe. And I think I'm feeling very
11 isolated in Richland and wanted to make sure that our
12 native people and our other diverse populations in this
13 community are heard.

14 So I don't have anything to add upon the other
15 speakers. But it was primarily for my
16 self-preservation to know that these issues are
17 important.

18 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. Thank you for
19 choosing to be here with us this morning. And the
20 commissioners will have a chance to connect with your
21 panel when all of you have had a chance to speak.

22 Sean, if you'd call the next person, please.

23 MR. MURRAY: The last person on this panel is
24 going to be Giovanni Severino. Giovanni, if you can
25 turn on your video and begin your testimony.

1 MR. G. SEVERINO: Hi. Good morning,
2 everyone. My name is Giovanni Severino, pronouns
3 he/him, and you know me as Gio.

4 I'm calling in, if you recognize the background,
5 from Yakima. I have live in the 4th Congressional
6 District and currently live in the 15th Legislative
7 District, which is actually funny because if you were
8 to cross the street from where I live, that's the
9 14th Legislative District. And so I myself at --
10 which was news to me. I used to live in the 14th
11 District but moved and then realized that, for whatever
12 reason, now I live in a different district. Right?

13 And that's exactly what we're here to talk about
14 today, right, is to prevent those issues from
15 happening. You know, like myself, many of my peers
16 that live in the Yakima area recognize that there has
17 been an intentional district drawing previously that --
18 the purpose was to dilute our voices and our political
19 presence. Right?

20 And, you know, Washington is a great state.
21 Washington aims to ensure that the government and that
22 the legislature reflects the people that live within
23 Washington. Right? Especially because we all pay
24 taxes. We all contribute to our society, to our great
25 state.

1 And I'm here to ask you all that -- to consider
2 and to listen to our community voices that are asking
3 for a state -- a district that includes the large
4 Latinx population that lives in Yakima city and then
5 also what's considered as the lower valley, which is
6 the neighboring communities below Yakima. Right?

7 We also want to keep the Yakima Nation as a whole.
8 We don't want to split. We don't want to create a new
9 district that continues to split the Yakima Nation. We
10 want to ensure that all of our community voices are
11 listened to and that we have a good probability or
12 possibility of being politically engaged and ensuring
13 that our voices carry some weight.

14 Thank you.

15 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

16 Commissioners, I want to ask if you have questions
17 or comments for the members of this panel.

18 (No audible response)

19 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: All right. Seeing none, I
20 want to thank the speakers for joining us this morning.
21 Thank you very much for coming and sharing with us.
22 And you're excused.

23 And, Sean, please call the next panel.

24 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, Chair. Our next
25 panel is going to be Anne Parazin, Sheila Avila, Craig

1 Maloney, and Blanche Barajas.

2 And when you're ready, if you can turn on your
3 video and begin your testimony.

4 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: I think the first one was
5 Parazin. Is that right?

6 MR. MURRAY: Yes. I see them here. But
7 their video's not connected.

8 And are you able to turn on your video and begin
9 your testimony?

10 (No audible response)

11 MR. MURRAY: Okay. We're going to move on to
12 Sheila, if you can turn on your video and begin your
13 testimony.

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

15 MS. S. AVILA: -- for allowing me to speak
16 today. My name is Sheila Avila. And I vote in the
17 15th District.

18 I'm here because I believe it is time for change.
19 This split between the 14th and the 15th is a
20 scheme. As it has been stated, it divides communities
21 of color and dilutes their political power. We know
22 it. You know, it. The Yakima community knows it.

23 I have gone canvassing in both legislative
24 districts, and it's really clear to see just by walking
25 down the street that the divide is there. Communities

1 of color have been marginalized in our electoral
2 process, especially here in Yakima, throughout history.

3 So really, you know, creating a majority POC
4 district in Yakima County will help amend this
5 discriminatory history and give Washington Latino and
6 indigenous communities equitable political power.

7 So I really hope that, you know -- from everyone
8 that's spoken here we -- you can all come together and
9 create a district that really encompasses all of the
10 communities that live here and gives us equitable
11 representation and a seat at the table.

12 Thank you so much for listening to me. And I hope
13 to hear great news. Thank you.

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

15 Sean, if you would call the next speaker, please.

16 MR. MURRAY: Yes, Craig Maloney, if you want
17 to begin your testimony.

18 MR. C. MALONEY: Good morning. And thank you
19 so much for the opportunity to speak in front of you.
20 So my name is Craig Maloney. I'm a Pasco City
21 Councilmember.

22 You know, Pasco is currently split between the 9th
23 and the 16th State Legislative Districts. And
24 legislators from both districts live nearly an hour
25 away from Pasco. And we applaud and thank our current

1 representation for their hard work in getting to know
2 our community. And they go consistently out of their
3 way to, you know, make sure we can connect and learn
4 about Pasco and Pasco's needs.

5 But -- and even the 8th Legislative District, who
6 is right across the river from us representing
7 Kennewick and Richland and West Richland, they have
8 been actively engaged in making sure that Pasco is well
9 represented.

10 However, as we go about looking at redistricting
11 of boundaries and redrawing the boundaries, I would
12 like to draw attention to the fact that of three
13 cities -- of the three cities in the Tri-Cities, Pasco
14 is a separate legislative district from the other two,
15 and we are split between two legislative districts.

16 While, again, I thank our current representation
17 for all their hard work and all the efforts they've
18 done to do well by our community, we ask the commission
19 to think deeply about how to structure the three
20 legislative districts in relation to Pasco and the
21 other cities to -- that comprise the Tri-Cities.

22 We are geographically intertwined, economically
23 interdependent, and we're part of a well-connected and
24 very rapidly growing area. We have over 300,000
25 residents. The three cities share a long history of

1 interrelationships, and we've developed many
2 sophisticated partnerships, including mutual aid
3 agreements in our fire departments and all sorts of
4 other interconnected structures that function well.

5 And we think that having Pasco separate from the
6 rest of the Tri-Cities in our legislative districts is
7 causing some challenges in this effort to collaborate.
8 So given our relationships, common interests, and our
9 rapid growth, we -- we look --

10 (Allotted time elapsed.)

11 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Mr. Maloney. I
12 apologize that your -- you are out of time. You can
13 submit your full comment via our mail. And stick
14 around to see if the commissioners have questions after
15 your panel.

16 Sean, if you'd call the next panelist, please.

17 MR. MURRAY: Yes, we're going to go with
18 Blanche Barajas for this next testifier. Please begin
19 your video and you can start your testimony.

20 Blanche, are you -- okay. Thank you.

21 MS. Z. ROACH: This is not Barajas. This is
22 Councilmember Zahra Roach from Pasco. I see you guys
23 have me listed as somebody else. So do you want me to
24 testify now or later? 'Cause I'm registered to testify
25 as myself.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. So we have a
2 court reporter who's taking all the -- all the official
3 record. So it -- it's fine if you testify now. You
4 will testify as yourself. I apologize for --

5 MS. Z. ROACH: Okay. All right. I just --

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Go ahead. And you --
7 there -- the panels are assembled at random. So now is
8 as good a time as any. Go ahead.

9 MS. Z. ROACH: Okay. Thank you so much.
10 Just want to say thank you to esteemed redistricting
11 commission for this opportunity.

12 And, you know, as was mentioned before, the City
13 of Pasco is really grateful for the dedication for our
14 9th and 16th District legislators. As somebody who has
15 lived in Pasco most of my life, 30-plus years, I have
16 lived both in the 9th and the 16th.

17 I have started my advocacy and lobbying well
18 before becoming a Pasco City Councilmember when I was a
19 Pasco School District teacher. So I truly do
20 understand, because I've lived it and experienced it,
21 the difficulty of -- of contacting, cultivating
22 relationships with six different legislative
23 representatives across the 9th and the 16th. Access
24 is difficult just because those legislators do not
25 reside in the Tri-Cities.

1 You know, I'd like to have you all evaluate
2 updating these legislative boundaries in the Tri-Cities
3 and give special attention to the City of Pasco. Pasco
4 has not had a legislator representing this city who
5 lives within 30 minutes of our great city for over two
6 decades now.

7 So for a community with a population over 70,000
8 people that's the second most urban area, this -- this
9 is astounding to me. And, you know, while our 9th and
10 16th legislators are responsive and answer emails and
11 definitely do advocacy, it's important for Pasco to
12 have a community member elected who represents this
13 area.

14 Pasco is quickly growing. It's an urban community
15 with issues facing -- that we face like mental, health
16 affordable housing, transportation. And these
17 challenges are shared by Kennewick and Richland, our
18 neighboring cities in the Tri-Cities. It's also worth
19 noting that the three cities, Pasco --

20 (Allotted time elapsed.)

21 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. I just want to
22 confirm that your -- that you are Zahra Roach. Is that
23 right, for the record?

24 (No audible response.)

25 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Okay. Great. Thank

1 you.

2 All right. So I think we have one more person on
3 this panel, and then the commissioners will ask
4 questions.

5 Sean?

6 MR. MURRAY: We're going to go and try to go
7 back to Ann, if you're able to turn on your video and
8 begin your testimony.

9 (No audible response.)

10 MR. MURRAY: They still have not connected
11 their video, Chair. So I think we should just move on.
12 We'll try them later if they are able to connect.

13 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. So the video and
14 audio, neither one seems to be working; is that right?

15 MR. MURRAY: Their audio is connected but
16 muted, and their video is completely off.

17 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Great. All right.
18 So we will try to move that person on to another
19 panel.

20 So, commissioners, I want to ask if you have
21 questions or comments for the three panel -- speakers
22 on this panel.

23 (No audible response).

24 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: All right. Seeing none, I
25 want to thank the panelists for coming and spending

1 time with us this morning. Thank you for your
2 comments. And we appreciate your time. You're
3 excused.

4 And, Sean, if you'd call the next panel, please.

5 MR. MURRAY: Yeah. So the beginning of our
6 next panel's going to be Pamela Gaudet, Jeffrey
7 Robinson, Jacob Dorsey, and David Morales.

8 Pamela if you're able to start your video and
9 begin your testimony.

10 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

11 MS. P. GAUDET: Thank you. My name is Pamela
12 Gaudet. I'm in Pasco. I have six points I'd like to
13 make.

14 First, Pasco, where I live, has a 54 percent
15 Latinx population. Yet in the legislative district,
16 not the CD, it's split into two districts, diluting the
17 representation of the Latinx people. We already
18 locally have an ACLU lawsuit against Pasco because of
19 this. Please don't split Pasco up in either CD or LD.

20 Number two, minority populations in Washington
21 should get a voice and not be added to populations that
22 will dilute their voices. Same for other communities
23 of interest.

24 Number three, the Yakima Nation and all native
25 people and lands should not be split up into

1 differently CDs and LDs. The commission should reach
2 out to all native peoples to ensure their voices are
3 heard.

4 Number four, we should start from scratch. We
5 should not be protecting incumbents but taking the
6 opportunity now to make it right.

7 Number five, we are one state. Don't divide east
8 from west. There is no benefit from such a schism.

9 Number six, there is a danger, with all due
10 respect, to the maps already proposed. When people see
11 a map, it seems to be truth. Start fresh. Don't
12 circulate maps until a large group of people have
13 weighed in and share the statistics of who's seen those
14 maps and who's agreed with them.

15 Thank you so much for your time.

16 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

17 Sean, if you'd call the next panelist, please.

18 Sean, you're on mute.

19 MR. MURRAY: Yes, if I can get away with one
20 today.

21 Jeffrey Robinson, if you can turn on your video
22 and begin your testimony, please.

23 MR. J. ROBINSON: Thank you very much. And
24 thank you to the commission. I'm both nervous as heck
25 and super excited to be here.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: We're glad you're here.
2 Welcome.

3 MR. J. ROBINSON: Thank you. So I just
4 wanted to make a few quick points. First and foremost,
5 the City of Pasco should not be split between
6 legislative districts or congressional districts. It
7 needs to be kept together and in one place. The
8 current maps where you have east Pasco in the 16th
9 Legislative District and the rest of Pasco somewhere
10 else are, to be blunt, racist. They are diminishing
11 Latinx voting power here, and it sends the message that
12 half our community isn't really wanted or welcome.

13 The second thing that I would say is that, despite
14 what one of the other speakers said, actually our
15 communities and our economies are just as interlinked
16 with Walla Walla County and with the City of Walla
17 Walla. And when it comes to thinking about
18 congressional districts and legislative districts, I
19 think that Franklin County and Walla Walla County and
20 indeed Columbia County do stay together. We are
21 actually just as intertwined as we are with other areas
22 of what some would refer to as the Tri-Cities.

23 Finally, the last point that I would like to make
24 is that we have an obligation to prioritize keeping
25 indigenous communities and communities color together.

1 We do a great disservice and perpetuate horrible
2 messaging when, for example, we split the Yakima Nation
3 and the Colville Tribe between congressional districts
4 or legislative districts. We are telling them they are
5 not people and they do not matter. And we owe them.
6 We owe ourselves maps that recognize this.

7 So to reiterate, please keep the city of Pasco
8 together. If at all possible, keep us with Walla Walla
9 and Columbia County, and let's remember that
10 communities of color are amazing and we ought to
11 prioritize keeping communities of color and indigenous
12 peoples together in these new maps. They have a right
13 to be represented, as well.

14 Thank you.

15 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

16 Sean, if you'd call the next panelist, please.

17 MR. MURRAY: Absolutely, Chair.

18 Our next is going to be Jacob Dorsey, if you don't
19 mind turning on your video and beginning your
20 testimony.

21 MR. J. DORSEY: Hi. Sorry. I do not have
22 video. That's okay, right?

23 MR. MURRAY: Yes, please begin.

24 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

25 MR. J. DORSEY: Okay. Thank you very much.

1 My name's Jake Dorsey. I live in Pasco, Franklin
2 County. And thank you so much for this opportunity,
3 commissioners and support staff.

4 I got a simple point. Pasco's too large a city to
5 be divided between legislative districts. It weakens
6 our pursuit as a city to do what we need to do to
7 succeed in this state, and it places us at a
8 disadvantage compared with our sister cities across the
9 Columbia River.

10 Kennewick and Richland can speak with a single
11 voice in the legislature. Whereas, Pasco must answer
12 to the whims of cities as far away as Othello to
13 Prosser, Dayton, and Pullman. It is not right for a
14 city of almost 80,000 people, the largest city this
15 side of the Columbia River until you hit Spokane, to be
16 disenfranchised at the legislative level.

17 If I can make one more point, Native American
18 tribes within our state are not merely players in this
19 redistricting effort; they are sovereigns. They are a
20 cut above cities and counties, even my own beloved
21 Pasco, and have interests that are wholly their own.
22 While their citizens are also citizens of our state and
23 thus must be subjected to this process, their status is
24 unique and must -- must be elevated beyond those of a
25 city or even a county.

1 Thus, I urge the commission to not divide tribal
2 reservations among congressional or legislative
3 districts. And the Yakima Nation, obviously, comes
4 especially to mind.

5 Thank you again for this opportunity
6 commissioners.

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you for your
8 testimony.

9 Sean, if you'd call the next panelist, please.

10 MR. MURRAY: Yes. The final panelist will be
11 David Morales, if you can turn on your video and begin
12 your testimony.

13 MR. D. MORALES: Good morning.

14 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

15 MR. D. MORALES: I live in the 15th
16 Legislative District, the 4th Congressional, and in
17 Yakima County.

18 Latinos are 52 percent of the population of the
19 county but only 29 percent of registered voters and
20 about 21 percent of active voters.

21 Countywide, or if you focus on the 15th
22 Legislative District, while it may be majority minority
23 in terms of overall population, it is not Latinos or
24 people of color who make up the majority of voters in
25 the district or the majority of eligible voters.

1 Latinos are only 25 percent of eligible voters in the
2 15th LD.

3 It is possible to change this dynamic. It is
4 possible to draw a district that performs for BIPOC
5 communities. It is possible to draw Latino a voting
6 district. It is possible to draw an indigenous and
7 Latino and Filipino majority district.

8 Native Americans vote for Latino candidates
9 between 85.5 and 95.9 percent of the time. This is a
10 strong support that Latinos and Native Americans form a
11 cohesive political block. This block is so critical to
12 understanding the politics that the expert's report in
13 the case between citizens and the County of Yakima
14 suggested that voting-rights remedies consider the
15 native population when drawing the remedies.

16 When considering the issue of voting rights for
17 Native Americans, you must understand that their
18 situation is not and cannot be like other racialized
19 groups. They are the original peoples of these lands
20 and have been disposed by war and imperialism. They
21 claim sovereignty upon a peace treaty made --

22 (Allotted time elapsed.)

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: I apologize, Mr. Morales.
24 You're out of time.

25 However, I do want to ask the commissioners at

1 this time if they have questions or comments for our
2 four panelists.

3 (No audible response).

4 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Seeing none, I would
5 like to thank the panelists for your time. Thank you
6 for spending your time with us.

7 Mr. Morales, if you would submit your full written
8 testimony to us by email, we would appreciate that.

9 And I'd like to excuse the panel.

10 And, Sean, please call the next panel.

11 MR. MURRAY: Yes, Chair. We're going to try
12 and remedy the switch-up earlier with the two
13 councilmembers. So I -- they're signed in right now as
14 Zahra Roach. But I believe that it is Blanche Barajas.
15 So we're going to begin with them. They have their
16 hand up, as well.

17 Then Dori Luzzo Gilmour, Randy Hayden, and then
18 Andrew Hong.

19 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. And if you
20 could just call the first speaker once again.

21 MR. MURRAY: Yes. Blanche Barajas or Zahra
22 Roach.

23 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Yeah.

24 MR. MURRAY: Who's ever signed in.

25 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Blanche Barajas.

1 MS. BLANCHE BARAJAS: Can you hear? This is
2 Blanche Barajas.

3 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Great. Welcome. We're
4 glad you're here. Thank you for being here.

5 MS. B. BARAJAS: Thank you. Thank you so
6 much for allowing me to speak today. And I apologize
7 for the confusion there was earlier with the
8 connectivity.

9 Again, my name is Blanche Barajas. I'm a Pasco
10 City Councilmember. And I want to reiterate the points
11 made by previous councilmembers for the City of Pasco.

12 Respectfully, we would like to request that the
13 commission consider that Pasco be partially represented
14 by legislators that live near or in the Tri-Cities
15 communities.

16 There are many ways of doing this in a way that
17 honors and recognizes the work of the 9th and 16th
18 District legislators and ensures some overlap in the
19 legislators representing Pasco, Kennewick, and
20 Richland. We're not advocating for any specific
21 configuration. We would welcome continued
22 representation by the 9th and 16th. But we -- we would
23 like to have a greater connection to the other two of
24 the Tri-Cities.

25 We would like a larger concentration of Pasco and

1 in a single legislative district to potentially allow
2 someone from our community to be elected. In all, I
3 ask that you be thoughtful of how an urban diverse
4 community such as Pasco be represented in Olympia.

5 Thank you so much for your consideration of this
6 request. And thank you again for allowing me to speak
7 today.

8 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you for your time.
9 Sean, if you would please call the next panelist.

10 MR. MURRAY: Yes. We're going to go with
11 Dori Baker next, if you can turn on your video and
12 begin your testimony.

13 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

14 MS. D. PERALTA BAKER: Good morning my name
15 is Dori Peralta Baker. I am the chair for the Asian
16 Pacific Islander Coalition of Yakima Valley.

17 And I chose to testify to ensure that people of
18 color in our communities as well as our representatives
19 are aware that the minority groups in Yakima Valley are
20 very interested in equal representation and racial
21 equality. With the idea of redistricting for 2021, the
22 options for our minority and BIPOC communities will be
23 better enhanced with better representation.

24 And also the concerns of our community about the
25 splitting of the Yakima Nation, we believe that the

1 Yakima Nation should not be divided and should include
2 the fishing villages along the Columbia River. So that
3 would be -- if you drop down the 14th all the way to
4 the Columbia, it's a large district. So there has to
5 be some lines and some changes made there.

6 But we are very concerned for Yakima as well as
7 all the other counties that have tribal nations in
8 them.

9 So thank you very much.

10 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

11 Sean, if you would call the next speaker, please.

12 MR. MURRAY: Next we have Randy Hayden. You
13 can turn on your video and begin your testimony.

14 MR. R. HAYDEN: Yes. Good morning. Thank
15 you, commission. I do not envy you your hard work.
16 All of the elements you mentioned of having try to fit
17 together is a gigantic puzzle. So I thank you for your
18 hard work to try and do that.

19 I'm going to pile on to the Pasco conversation. I
20 live in the 9th District, work in the 16th District.
21 And I don't want to repeat what everybody else has
22 said. We really would appreciate trying to get Pasco
23 back as one legislative district.

24 Thank you.

25 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you. We appreciate

1 your time.

2 Sean, if you would call the next panelist, please.

3 MR. MURRAY: Our next panelist will be Andrew
4 Hong. I see his video already up. So if you can,
5 please begin your testimony. Thank you.

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome.

7 MR. A. HONG: Hi. My name is Andrew Hong.
8 I'm one of the staffers for the Redistricting Justice
9 For Washington Coalition. We are a group of over 50
10 community organizations across Washington state.

11 Our core priorities include keeping communities
12 color and indigenous nations together, increasing the
13 number of majority people-of-color citizens-of-voting-
14 age populations to fight for fair and equitable
15 representation for our BIPOC communities and
16 prioritizing community interests over partisan
17 interests.

18 I want talk specifically today about the
19 legislative districts in Yakima County. Currently our
20 Latino and indigenous communities in the City of
21 Yakima, Yakima Valley, and the Yakima Nation are split
22 between the 14th and 15th Legislative Districts.

23 We want to get rid of that division of communities
24 of color and create fair maps that do not rig the
25 system against people of color by creating a

1 legislative district that includes the city -- Latino
2 communities in the City of Yakima, the Latino
3 communities in the southern part of Yakima County,
4 those Latino communities that span from the south
5 central to the southeastern border of Yakima County,
6 and then also the Yakima Nation, including those
7 fishing villages that go a little bit into the
8 Klickitat County along the Columbia Rivery, as well.

9 And these priorities and changes to the
10 legislative districts in this area has been discussed
11 by community members in the region for over the span of
12 months. And so this is a big priority for this
13 community.

14 And yeah. This is how we undo the historical
15 wrongs to communities color in central Washington and
16 Washington as a whole over the -- you know, in our
17 electoral systems throughout history. And yeah.

18 Also, I want to add on a second point prioritizing
19 keeping the Colville nation into one congressional and
20 one legislative district. That is also a priority.

21 Thank you.

22 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

23 All right. So I want to ask the commissioners at
24 this time if you have questions or comments for our
25 panelists.

1 MR. MURRAY: We only have one member for our
2 next panel. That would be John Kennedy. If you can
3 begin your testimony and turn on your video. Thank
4 you.

5 Johnny Kennedy, are you able turn on your video?
6 Thank you.

7 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Welcome. So I haven't
8 quite heard your audio yet, Mr. Kennedy.

9 MR. J. KENNEDY: Sorry. Is that -- are you
10 able to hear me now?

11 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Now I can hear you. Thank
12 you.

13 MR. J. KENNEDY: Sorry.

14 Hi. My name is John Kennedy. I'm a resident of
15 Pasco in the 16th Legislative District.

16 And I just want to echo my residents in urging
17 that the commission think about keeping local
18 communities united. In Yakima County and Franklin
19 County our areas are divided. City of Pasco's divided
20 into two legislative districts, and I think this poses
21 challenges for fair representation in our city, and I
22 think the same goes for Yakima.

23 And for the congressional districts I also urge
24 compact, continuous districts, keeping united areas of
25 local interest, such as Pasco, the Tri-Cities

1 generally, Walla Walla, Yakima. And so I urge the
2 commission to consider that and try to keep communities
3 united.

4 Thank you very much.

5 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

6 So I'm -- I want to ask the commissioners if you
7 have additional comments or questions for Mr. Kennedy.

8 (No audible response).

9 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Okay. Seeing none, I would
10 like to thank you for your time this morning and thank
11 you for spending the time with us. And you are
12 excused.

13 And what I'd now like to do is, in conclusion, I'd
14 like to invite each commissioner to make concluding
15 remarks if you wish. No pressure.

16 If you could just raise your hand and let me know,
17 and then I'll call on you.

18 Okay. Commissioner Simms.

19 COMMISSIONER SIMMS: Thank you, Commissioner.
20 I just really want to express my gratitude and
21 appreciation for whoever took the time to offer public
22 the comment today. I know how much time and energy
23 goes into preparing your remarks and your thoughts and
24 appreciate all of the information that you shared. And
25 we will take this into consideration as we are

1 considering drawing our maps.

2 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Commissioner
3 Simms.

4 Others?

5 Commissioner Walkinshaw.

6 COMMISSIONER WALKINSHAW: Just to echo
7 Commissioner Simms.

8 And thank you, Commissioner Augustine.

9 Thank you for coming today. I just thought it was
10 very organized and direct and thoughtful feedback. So
11 thank you for the time this morning.

12 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

13 Commissioner Fain? Commissioner Graves?

14 Commissioner Graves?

15 COMMISSIONER GRAVES: Similarly, thank
16 everybody for testifying today, this Saturday morning,
17 taking your time out of that to come to testify to us.
18 And I just want you all to know that I'm really
19 grateful for all of your time to do that.

20 And, also, while we can -- you know, we're sitting
21 here on a Zoom panel, we all have the same background,
22 and we're kind looking at the screen, I promise you,
23 we're taking notes, and we're listening to what you
24 have to say, and we really appreciate everything that
25 you've told this morning.

1 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you.

2 And Commissioner Fain.

3 COMMISSIONER FAIN: I'm just seeing if I've
4 got a working microphone here. But hopefully I do.

5 Again, I --

6 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: You do. Yes. We can hear
7 you.

8 COMMISSIONER FAIN: I echo everyone's
9 comments. And we are -- we're feverishly looking over
10 the existing boundary lines as you're testifying and
11 seeing how -- in particular the comments from Pasco
12 today, where those dividing lines are.

13 So, again, I find these -- these -- this public
14 process very helpful in actually getting the down to
15 the nitty-gritty details of each community.

16 So thanks for taking the time to be here today.

17 CHAIR AUGUSTINE: Thank you, Commissioner
18 Fain.

19 Okay. well, thank you to all the people who are
20 working together to accomplish the work of the
21 commission, especially those who helped to bring this
22 public meeting to the public today.

23 And so I'd like to begin by thanking those people
24 who are providing translation services for us, both
25 American Sign Language and Spanish interpretation.

1 Thank you.

2 I also would like to thank the Washington State
3 Redistricting Commission staff, who have worked
4 tirelessly to help bring this together -- this meeting
5 together.

6 And the commission caucus staff, thank you.

7 There are many more who are part of helping the
8 commission to do our work.

9 And I -- I also want to thank members, the
10 commissioners. Thank you for your time and your
11 diligence and all of the time that you spend between
12 meetings being -- preparing yourself and working on
13 this crucial issue for all the residents of Washington
14 state. Thank you.

15 And thank you to the public. Thank you for
16 spending part of your Saturday morning with us to
17 engage in this vital political process.

18 Thank you. Have a good morning.

19 (Proceedings concluded at 10:59 a.m.)

20

21

22

23

24

25

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

C E R T I F I C A T E

I, SUE E. GARCIA, a Certified Court Reporter in and for the State of Washington, residing at Tacoma, authorized to administer oaths and affirmations pursuant to RCW 5.28.010, do hereby certify:

That the foregoing proceedings were taken before me on the 5th of June, 2021, and thereafter transcribed by me by means of computer-aided transcription, that the transcript is a full, true, and complete transcript of said proceedings, consisting of pages 1 through 50;

That as a CCR in this state, I am bound by the Rules of Conduct as Codified in WAC 308-14-130; that court reporting arrangements and fees in this case are offered to all parties on equal terms;

That I am not a relative, employee, attorney, or counsel of any party to this action or relative or employee of any such attorney or counsel, and I am not financially interested in the said action or the outcome thereof;

IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this June 15, 2021.

Sue E. Garcia

SUE E. GARCIA, CCR, RMR
WA Lic. No. 2781



<p style="text-align: center;">A</p> <p>a.m 5:2 49:19</p> <p>able 6:7,10,13 10:13 13:24 17:4 18:24 19:5,6,8 20:24 24:8 30:7 30:12 31:8 45:5 45:10</p> <p>Absolutely 18:1 19:14 21:2 23:24 34:17</p> <p>absorb 9:23 10:6</p> <p>access 6:19 18:25 28:23</p> <p>accomplish 48:20</p> <p>accomplished 19:7</p> <p>accountable 16:2</p> <p>ACLU 31:18</p> <p>action 50:16,18</p> <p>active 36:20</p> <p>actively 26:8</p> <p>add 8:19,21 9:23 21:14 43:18</p> <p>added 7:13 16:18 31:21</p> <p>additional 9:10 10:6 46:7</p> <p>address 6:2,10 17:7</p> <p>adjacent 10:5</p> <p>adjustments 8:23</p> <p>admin@capitolp... 1:24</p> <p>administer 50:4</p> <p>ADMINISTRAT... 2:11</p> <p>advocacy 28:17 29:11</p> <p>advocating 39:20</p> <p>affirmations 50:4</p> <p>affordable 29:16</p> <p>age 42:14</p> <p>ago 19:21,23</p> <p>agree 16:16</p> <p>agreed 6:16 32:14</p>	<p>agreements 27:3</p> <p>ahead 28:6,8</p> <p>aid 27:2</p> <p>aims 22:21</p> <p>align 13:22</p> <p>allotted 2:23 20:21 27:10 29:20 37:22</p> <p>allow 40:1</p> <p>allowed 2:23 17:16</p> <p>allowing 14:11 18:9 24:15 39:6 40:6</p> <p>alongside 15:4</p> <p>amazing 34:10</p> <p>amend 25:4</p> <p>American 11:15,20 35:17 48:25</p> <p>Americans 37:8,10 37:17</p> <p>Andrew 3:22 38:18 42:3,7 44:3</p> <p>Ann 30:7</p> <p>Anne 23:25</p> <p>answer 29:10 35:11</p> <p>apologize 14:5 27:12 28:4 37:23 39:6</p> <p>APPEARANCES 2:1</p> <p>applaud 25:25</p> <p>apply 12:4</p> <p>applying 8:9</p> <p>apportionment 7:9 7:23</p> <p>appreciate 12:10 31:2 38:8 41:22 41:25 44:14,22 46:24 47:24</p> <p>appreciation 46:21</p> <p>approximately 7:13 8:2,5 10:17</p> <p>April 2:5 7:5,7,23 7:25</p> <p>area 8:19 12:23</p>	<p>13:2,3 14:16 17:4 18:13 22:16 26:24 29:8,13 43:10</p> <p>areas 10:6 12:1 33:21 45:19,24</p> <p>arrangements 50:13</p> <p>artificial 13:10</p> <p>Asian 40:15</p> <p>asking 18:15 23:2</p> <p>ASL 15:3</p> <p>assembled 28:7</p> <p>ASSISTANT 2:11</p> <p>astounding 29:9</p> <p>attention 26:12 29:3</p> <p>attorney 50:15,17</p> <p>audible 17:21 23:18 24:10 29:24 30:9,23 38:3 44:17 46:8</p> <p>audio 2:22,22,24 30:14,15 45:8</p> <p>August 7:6</p> <p>Augustine 2:2 3:3 4:7 5:8,9,21 11:3 11:7,12 12:11,17 12:21 14:2,8 16:6 17:18,22 18:7 19:11,16 20:22 21:18 23:15,19 24:4,14 25:14 27:11 28:1,6 29:21,25 30:13,17 30:24 31:10 32:16 33:1 34:15,24 36:7,14 37:23 38:4,19,23,25 39:3 40:8,13 41:10,25 42:6 43:22 44:12,18 45:7,11 46:5,9 47:2,8,12 48:1,6 48:17</p>	<p>authorized 50:3</p> <p>Avila 3:12 23:25 24:15,16</p> <p>aware 7:2 18:19 40:19</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">B</p> <hr/> <p>B 39:5</p> <p>back 17:12 30:7 41:23</p> <p>background 20:13 22:4 47:21</p> <p>Baker 3:20 40:11 40:14,15</p> <p>balanced 10:11</p> <p>Barajas 3:19 24:1 27:18,21 38:14,21 38:25 39:1,2,5,9</p> <p>Based 7:11,19,23 9:16</p> <p>becoming 28:18</p> <p>beginning 12:16 31:5 34:19</p> <p>believe 15:1 24:18 38:14 40:25</p> <p>beloved 35:20</p> <p>benefit 32:8</p> <p>best 6:5,12,24</p> <p>better 12:20 17:6 20:16 40:23,23</p> <p>beyond 35:24</p> <p>big 11:19 43:12</p> <p>biggest 11:16</p> <p>BIPOC 37:4 40:22 42:15</p> <p>bit 18:9 43:7</p> <p>Blanche 3:19 24:1 27:18,20 38:14,21 38:25 39:1,2,9</p> <p>block 37:11,11</p> <p>blunt 33:10</p> <p>border 43:5</p> <p>borders 16:22</p> <p>bound 50:11</p>	<p>boundaries 26:11 26:11 29:2</p> <p>boundary 10:7 15:19 48:10</p> <p>bowl 20:4</p> <p>BRADY 2:6</p> <p>break 2:22</p> <p>brief 9:25</p> <p>bring 6:8 16:1 20:10 48:21 49:4</p> <p>Bristol 1:22</p> <p>broadly 8:24</p> <p>brown 9:3</p> <p>Bryson 3:10 18:3 21:3,5</p> <p>bunch 19:25</p> <p>Bureau 7:5,7 11:17</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">C</p> <hr/> <p>C 25:18 50:1,1</p> <p>C-103 1:22</p> <p>call 10:25 17:25 19:13 21:1,22 23:23 25:15 27:16 31:4 32:17 34:16 36:9 38:10,20 40:9 41:11 42:2 44:24 46:17</p> <p>calling 22:4</p> <p>candidates 17:2 37:8</p> <p>canvass 17:4</p> <p>canvassing 24:23</p> <p>capital 17:16</p> <p>Capitol 1:21</p> <p>care 14:13 20:8</p> <p>carry 13:8 23:13</p> <p>cascade 10:7</p> <p>case 37:13 50:13</p> <p>cater 14:24</p> <p>caucus 49:6</p> <p>cause 8:22 27:24</p> <p>causing 27:7</p> <p>CCR 1:17 50:11,23</p>
--	---	---	--	--

CD 13:19 17:1 31:16,19	cities 8:15 26:13,13 26:21,25 29:18,19 35:8,12,20	comes 33:17 36:3	24:25 25:6,10 31:22 33:15,25,25 34:10,11 37:5 39:15 40:18,22 42:11,15,20,23 43:2,3,4,15 45:18 46:2	17:9 18:13 22:5 33:6,18 34:3 36:2 36:16 43:19 45:23
CDs 32:1	citizen 19:20	coming 20:4 23:21 30:25 47:9	commend 20:15	connect 21:20 26:3 30:12
census 7:5,7 8:13 11:17 12:1	citizens 35:22,22 37:13	comment 3:4 27:13 44:13,16,19 46:22	comments 6:4,6,9 10:21 17:20 19:12 23:17 30:21 31:2 38:1 43:24 44:22 46:7 48:9,11	connected 24:7 30:10,15
central 43:5,15	citizens-of-voting- 42:13	commission 1:2 5:10 6:15,15 7:20 8:9 10:1,13 13:18 16:14 19:22,23 20:15 26:18 28:11 32:1,24 36:1 39:13 41:15 45:17 46:2 48:21 49:3,6 49:8	community 10:10 10:12 15:18,24 18:23 20:6 21:13 23:2,10 24:22 26:2,18 29:7,12 29:14 33:12 40:2 40:4,24 42:10,16 43:11,13 48:15	connection 39:23 connectivity 39:8
certainly 6:10 19:5	citizenship 11:21 12:6	commissioner 2:3,4 2:5,6 4:3,4,5,6 11:18 44:1,2,9 46:14,18,19,19 47:2,5,6,7,8,13,13 47:14,15 48:2,3,8 48:17	compact 8:1,4 45:24	consider 13:18 23:1 37:14 39:13 46:2
Certified 5:3 50:2	city 15:8,14,15,18 23:4 25:20 28:12 28:18 29:3,4,5 33:5,16 34:7 35:4 35:6,14,14,25 39:10,11 42:20 43:1,2 45:19,21	commissioners 5:18 6:3,21 10:2 10:14,22 11:2 12:9 14:10 17:19 18:10 20:24 21:20 23:16 27:14 30:3 30:20 35:3 36:6 37:25 43:23 44:16 46:6 49:10	compared 35:8	consideration 40:5 46:25
certify 50:5	civility 6:21	committed 8:9	complete 50:9	considered 23:5
chair 4:7 5:8,9,21 5:23 11:3,7,12 12:11,17,21 14:2 14:8 16:6 17:18 17:22 18:1,7 19:11,16 20:22 21:2,18 23:15,19 23:24 24:4,14 25:14 27:11 28:1 28:6 29:21,25 30:11,13,17,24 31:10 32:16 33:1 34:15,17,24 36:7 36:14 37:23 38:4 38:11,19,23,25 39:3 40:8,13,15 41:10,25 42:6 43:22 44:12,18 45:7,11 46:5,9 47:2,12 48:1,6,17	claim 37:21	common 11:22 12:5 27:8	completely 30:16	considering 37:16 47:1
Chairwoman 2:2 3:3	clear 24:24	COMMUNICAT... 2:8,10	compress 16:24	consistently 26:2
challenge 9:25	closely 13:21	communities 5:25 8:8 15:7,10,12,14 18:18 23:6 24:20	comprise 26:21	consisting 1:11 50:10
challenges 27:7 29:17 45:21	Closing 4:3,4,5,6,7		computer-aided 50:8	constituents 17:7
challenging 7:3	coalition 14:18,18 15:6 40:16 42:9 44:4		concentration 39:25	consultation 16:2
chance 21:20,21	Codified 50:12		concern 11:19	contacting 28:21
change 7:15 24:18 37:3	cohesive 37:11		concerned 18:17 41:6	containing 10:3
changes 10:8 18:16 41:5 43:9	collaborate 27:7		concerns 6:2 16:1 40:24	contiguous 8:1,4
choose 20:25	collective 16:1		concluded 49:19	continue 7:17
choosing 21:19	college 7:10		concluding 46:14	continued 4:1 39:21
chose 40:17	color 15:11 24:21 25:1 33:25 34:10 34:11 36:24 40:18 42:12,24,25 43:15		conclusion 46:13	continues 23:9
circulate 32:12	colors 9:3,5		conduct 6:20 50:12	continuous 45:24
	Columbia 33:20 34:9 35:9,15 41:2 41:4 43:8		configuration 39:21	contribute 22:24
	Colville 13:15,20 13:22 15:23 34:3 43:19		confirm 29:22	control 13:16
	come 10:19 14:19 20:7 21:7 25:8 47:17		confusion 39:7	convenient 8:2,4
			Congress 7:10	conversation 41:19
			congressional 1:8 5:14 7:16,22 8:1 9:3,8,13 12:2,8 15:5,22 16:23	Cool 44:11
				COORDINATOR 2:9
				core 42:11
				corresponding 8:23
				Councilmember 25:21 27:22 28:18 39:10
				councilmembers 38:13 39:11

counsel 50:16,17
counties 8:8,15
 35:20 41:7
county 12:23 15:8
 15:19,21 16:22
 21:8 25:4 33:16
 33:19,19,20 34:9
 35:2,25 36:17,19
 37:13 42:19 43:3
 43:5,8 45:18,19
Countywide 36:21
court 1:22 5:3 28:2
 50:2,12
covering 15:15
COVID 13:3
Craig 3:13 23:25
 25:16,20
create 8:10 10:2
 15:1 16:3 23:8
 25:9 42:24
creates 10:7 17:14
creating 25:3 42:25
credible 6:17
critical 37:11
cross 22:8
Crowley 3:8 18:2,6
 18:8
crucial 49:13
cultivating 28:21
current 17:8 25:25
 26:16 33:8
currently 9:9 15:7
 17:1 22:6 25:22
 42:19
cut 8:7 35:20
cycle 5:12 7:3

D

D 36:13,15 40:14
D.C 17:7,13
danger 32:9
DANIEL 2:9
darker 9:3,5
data 7:4,6,9,11,23

11:23
David 3:18 31:7
 36:11
Dayton 35:13
deadline 6:23
debate 12:6
decade 7:12
decades 29:6
decisions 17:11
dedication 28:13
deeply 14:13 26:19
Defense 11:20
definitely 29:11
deliberate 6:11
deliver 7:8
departments 27:3
descent 11:15
deserves 14:25
despite 7:15 33:13
details 48:15
developed 27:1
different 22:12
 28:22
differently 32:1
difficult 13:6 18:22
 28:24
difficulty 28:21
digital 2:10,22
diligence 49:11
diligently 15:25
dilute 22:18 31:22
dilutes 15:11 24:21
diluting 31:16
diminishing 33:10
direct 47:10
DIRECTOR 2:7,8
disadvantage 35:8
discriminatory
 25:5
discussed 43:10
discussion 5:13 9:7
disenfranchised
 35:16
disposed 37:20

disruption 2:22
disservice 34:1
distracting 20:12
distribute 7:20
district 1:8 5:14 8:7
 8:22 9:8,13,15
 12:2,8,23,25 13:5
 13:20,21,22 14:1
 14:14 15:5,13,22
 16:23,23,25 17:9
 17:10 18:13 22:6
 22:7,9,11,12,17
 23:3,9 24:17 25:4
 25:9 26:5,14
 28:14,19 31:15
 33:9 36:16,22,25
 37:4,6,7 39:18
 40:1 41:4,20,20
 41:23 43:1,20
 45:15
districts 5:14 7:22
 7:22 8:1,3,11,18
 8:20,23 9:3,4,5,14
 9:18,19 10:8,11
 14:15 15:10 16:4
 24:24 25:23,24
 26:15,20 27:6
 31:16 33:6,6,18
 33:18 34:3,4 35:5
 36:3 42:19,22
 43:10 45:20,23,24
diverse 21:12 40:3
diversity 21:7
divide 13:13 20:11
 24:25 32:7 36:1
divided 35:5 41:1
 45:19,19
divides 15:10 24:20
dividing 48:12
division 13:10,12
 42:23
document 2:20,21
doing 39:16
Dori 3:20 38:17

40:11,15
Dorsey 3:17 31:7
 34:18,21,25 35:1
draw 7:25 26:12
 37:4,5,6
drawing 8:7 22:17
 37:15 47:1
drawn 17:9
drop 41:3
due 32:9
dynamic 37:3

E

E 1:17 5:2 11:13
 50:1,1,2,23
e-mail 1:24
earlier 38:12 39:7
east 32:7 33:8
eastern 15:19
echo 45:16 47:6
 48:8
economically 26:22
economies 33:15
effectively 6:13
effort 27:7 35:19
efforts 26:17
either 31:19
elapsed 2:23 20:21
 27:10 29:20 37:22
elect 13:6
elected 17:8 29:12
 40:2
electoral 7:10 25:1
 43:17
elements 41:16
elevated 35:24
eligible 36:25 37:1
eliminated 13:14
email 38:8 44:13
emails 29:10
employee 50:15,16
encompass 15:17
encompasses 15:13
 25:9
encourage 13:11
endeavor 5:25 6:6
energy 46:22
engage 5:25 49:17
engaged 23:12 26:8
English 19:19
enhanced 40:23
ensure 10:10 14:19
 22:21 23:10 32:2
 40:17
ensures 39:18
ensuring 23:12
entire 17:10
entirety 15:20
entitled 7:16
envy 41:15
equal 14:25 40:20
 50:14
equality 40:21
equally 7:21 8:10
equitable 5:24 25:6
 25:10 42:14
equity 14:19
especially 11:19,23
 12:2,5 15:15
 22:23 25:2 36:4
 48:21
essence 10:2
Esteban 3:5 11:5,6
 11:8
esteemed 28:10
estimates 8:16 9:16
evaluate 29:1
event 18:12
everybody 12:10
 41:21 47:16
everyone's 48:8
exact 2:20
exactly 10:4 22:13
example 34:2
exception 20:15
excited 19:21 32:25
excuse 17:23 38:9
excused 23:22 31:3

44:23 46:12
EXECUTIVE 2:7
existing 48:10
expanding 15:19
expect 7:6
experienced 28:20
expert's 37:12
express 18:10,21
 46:20

F

F 50:1
face 29:15
faces 10:1
facilitate 5:23
facing 29:15
fact 26:12
Fain 2:3 4:6 14:10
 47:13 48:2,3,8,18
fair 5:24 16:3 42:14
 42:24 45:21
fairly 10:11
falls 16:24
family 17:3
far 17:1,12 35:12
Fax 1:22
federal 13:17
feed 2:22
feedback 47:10
feel 13:1,12,20
feeling 21:10
fees 50:13
feverishly 48:9
field 17:5
fight 42:14
Filipino 37:7
filtered 17:12
final 16:10 36:10
Finally 33:23
financial 17:3
financially 50:17
find 9:10 48:13
fine 28:3
fire 27:3

first 5:16 9:1 11:1,4
 15:14 16:17 24:4
 31:14 33:4 38:20
fishing 15:21 41:2
 43:7
fit 41:16
five 32:7
focus 36:21
folks 18:11
following 5:4 6:16
 15:13
foregoing 50:6
foreign 19:17
foremost 33:4
forgot 20:10
form 37:10
former 13:19
forward 6:8 10:19
 13:23 19:7
four 10:19,21,23
 32:4 38:2
fourth 5:11
Franklin 33:19
 35:1 45:18
Free 1:23
fresh 32:11
front 25:19
fruit 20:8,8
full 27:13 38:7 50:9
fully 6:1
function 27:4
funny 20:2 22:7
future 16:3 20:17

G

G 22:1
gain 7:9
game 14:24
garbled 2:22
Garcia 1:17 5:2
 50:2,23
GARZA 2:11
Gaudet 3:15 31:6
 31:11,12

gelling 48:14
general 18:18,21
generally 46:1
geographically
 26:22
getting 26:1
gigantic 41:17
Gilmour 38:17
Gio 22:3
Giovanni 3:11 18:3
 21:24,24 22:2
give 8:17 25:5 29:3
given 27:8
gives 25:10
glad 19:21 33:1
 39:4
go 26:2,10 27:17
 28:6,8 30:6,6
 40:10 43:7
goal 5:23
goes 17:1 45:22
 46:23
going 10:18 11:6
 21:3,24 23:25
 24:11 27:17 30:6
 31:6 34:18 38:11
 38:15 40:10 41:19
good 5:8 8:17 11:2
 11:3,13 12:17
 14:8,9,10 16:13
 18:14 21:5 22:1
 23:11 25:18 28:8
 36:13 40:14 41:14
 49:18
good-faith 6:22
government 13:17
 19:24 22:21
grateful 28:13
 47:19
gratitude 46:20
Graves 2:4 4:5
 14:10 44:1,2,9
 47:13,14,15
great 22:20,24

25:13 29:5,25
 30:17 34:1 39:3
 44:9
greater 39:23
grew 7:12 14:14
grounded 6:18
group 10:24 32:12
 42:9
groups 10:19 37:19
 40:19 44:5
grow 9:4
growing 26:24
 29:14
growth 7:15,19
 8:14 27:9
guys 19:25 27:22

H

half 13:4,15,19,25
 33:12
halls 13:3
hand 38:16 46:16
 50:19
happen 18:14
happening 22:15
hard 17:2 26:1,17
 41:15,18
harvest 20:4,8
Hayden 3:21 38:17
 41:12,14
he/him 22:3
head 44:6
health 29:15
healthy 21:9
hear 6:1,4 19:3
 25:13 39:1 45:10
 45:11 48:6
heard 2:18 20:18
 21:13 32:3 45:8
heck 32:24
Hello 18:6
help 18:20 25:4
 49:4
helped 48:21

helpful 48:14
helping 18:11 49:7
helps 17:5,6
HEREOF 50:19
hereunto 50:19
Hi 21:5 22:1 34:21
 42:7 45:14
highly 20:5,5
historical 43:14
historically 17:8
history 25:2,5
 26:25 43:17
hit 35:15
Hong 3:22 38:18
 42:4,7,7 44:6,11
 44:13
honors 39:17
hope 19:5 25:7,12
hopefully 48:4
hopes 18:21
horrible 34:1
hour 25:24
House 7:18
housing 29:16

I

Idaho 16:22
idea 8:17 40:21
ideas 6:9
identify 17:2
impacted 12:7
impacts 12:5
imperialism 37:20
important 6:4
 17:17 21:17 29:11
include 41:1 42:11
included 5:15
includes 9:13 23:3
 43:1
including 13:19
 15:20 27:2 43:6
increasing 13:25
 42:12
incumbents 32:5

INDEX 3:1 4:1
indicates 9:8
indigenous 15:7
 25:6 33:25 34:11
 37:6 42:12,20
indiscernible 2:18
individual 10:20
individuals 10:17
 10:19
information 46:24
inherent 10:15
injustices 6:9
input 10:10 15:2
 16:15 18:18
insofar 8:6
instructs 8:6
intact 15:23
integrated 20:5
intentional 22:17
interconnected
 27:4
interdependent
 26:23
interest 8:9 10:13
 15:12 31:23 45:25
interested 19:2
 40:20 50:18
interests 10:12
 14:24 27:8 35:21
 42:16,17
interlinked 33:15
interpretation
 48:25
interpreter 15:3
 20:11,14
interracial 20:6
interrelationships
 27:1
intertwined 26:22
 33:21
invite 10:18 46:14
involved 44:4
Islander 40:16
isolated 21:11

issue 13:24 37:16
 49:13
issues 6:11 13:4
 21:16 22:14 29:15

J

J 32:23 33:3 34:21
 34:25 45:9,13
Jacob 3:17 31:7
 34:18
Jake 35:1
JAMIE 2:8
Jeffrey 3:16 31:6
 32:21
job 7:20
JOE 2:3
John 3:23 45:2,14
Johnny 45:5
joining 5:22 23:20
June 1:13 5:1 50:7
 50:20
jurisdiction 6:11
Justice 14:17 42:8

K

keep 12:4 15:11,23
 15:24 20:19 23:7
 34:7,8 46:2
keeping 33:24
 34:11 42:11 43:19
 45:17,24
Kennedy 3:23 45:2
 45:5,8,9,13,14
 46:7
Kennewick 26:7
 29:17 35:10 39:19
kept 33:7
kick 5:17
kind 11:16 19:8
 47:22
Kitsap 21:7
Klallam 21:10
Klickitat 15:21
 16:21 43:8

know 7:11 8:12,13
 11:23 17:12 19:2
 19:4 20:3,13,16
 20:19 21:16 22:3
 22:15,20 24:21,22
 25:3,7,22 26:1,3
 28:12 29:1,9
 43:16 44:7 46:16
 46:22 47:18,20

knowledge 11:22
knows 24:22

L

L 18:6,8
lands 31:25 37:19
language 19:18
 48:25
large 17:4 23:3
 32:12 35:4 41:4
largely 15:17
larger 8:19 39:25
largest 12:23 35:14
late 7:6,7
Latino 15:7,14,17
 25:5 37:5,7,8
 42:20 43:1,2,4
Latinos 36:18,23
 37:1,10
Latinx 23:4 31:15
 31:17 33:11
law 6:23
lawsuit 31:18
LD 31:19 37:2
LDs 32:1
League 11:20
learn 19:8 26:3
left 13:1
legislative 5:14
 7:22 8:3 9:14,14
 9:17 15:10,13
 22:6,9 24:23
 25:23 26:5,14,15
 26:20 27:6 28:22
 29:2 31:15 33:6,9

33:18 34:4 35:5
 35:16 36:2,16,22
 40:1 41:23 42:19
 42:22 43:1,10,20
 45:15,20

legislator 29:4

legislators 25:24

28:14,24 29:10

39:14,18,19

legislature 22:22

35:11

let's 5:17 10:25

34:9

level 17:5 35:16

Lic 50:24

life 14:15 28:15

Lin 3:8 18:2,4

lines 8:7 41:5 48:10

48:12

LISA 2:7

list 44:10

listed 27:23

listen 6:5 10:9

20:13 23:2

listened 23:11

listening 25:12

47:23

little 18:9 43:7

live 8:18 12:22

13:15 14:22 18:24

22:5,6,8,10,12,16

22:22 25:10,24

31:14 35:1 36:15

39:14 41:20

lived 28:15,16,20

lives 23:4 29:5

lobbying 28:17

local 13:7 45:17,25

locally 31:18

long 26:25

look 11:24 13:23

14:22 17:8 27:9

looking 11:24

26:10 47:22 48:9

lose 9:19

lot 19:3

love 44:9

lower 23:5

Luzzo 38:17

M

M 14:6,9 19:17

mail 27:13

majority 15:15

25:3 36:22,24,25

37:7 42:13 44:7

making 18:19 26:8

Maloney 3:13 24:1

25:16,18,20 27:11

map 9:1,2,8 16:3

32:11

mapping 18:24

maps 6:24 16:3

32:10,12,14 33:8

34:6,12 42:24

47:1

Margaret 14:4

marginalized 25:1

Margot 3:6 11:5

14:5,6,13

Maria 2:11 5:21

8:25 9:12,24

Mathew 3:9 18:2

19:15,19

matter 14:22 34:5

MCLEAN 2:7

meaning 9:19 10:6

means 50:8

media 2:10 19:3

meet 6:23 10:13

meeting 1:7 5:11

7:2 10:9 15:25

48:22 49:4

meetings 49:12

member 14:17

29:12 45:1

members 15:25

23:17 43:11 49:9

mental 29:15	11:2,4,8 12:14,18	26:4 33:7	old 13:15 19:25	17:25 18:2 20:25
mention 16:19	14:4 16:10 18:1	negotiate 6:22	Olympia 1:22 40:4	21:21,23 23:17,23
mentioned 28:12	19:14 21:2,23	neighborhoods	once 11:8 38:20	23:25 27:15 30:3
41:16 44:3	23:24 24:6,11	8:14	online 18:25	30:19,21,22 31:4
merely 35:18	25:16 27:17 30:6	neighboring 8:23	open 6:17	38:9,10 44:25
Merit 1:17	30:10,15 31:5	23:6 29:18	Opening 3:3	45:2 47:21
message 5:17 33:11	32:19 34:17,23	neighbors 8:21	opinions 10:15	panel's 31:6
messaging 34:2	36:10 38:11,21,24	neither 30:14	opportunities	panelist 16:10
Mexican 11:15,20	40:10 41:12 42:3	nervous 32:24	17:15	19:13,14 21:1
microphone 48:4	45:1	new 7:25 8:3 10:2	opportunity 13:24	27:16 32:17 34:16
migrant 20:7	mute 32:18	18:16 23:8 34:12	15:1 16:15 25:19	36:9,10 40:9 42:2
million 7:13 8:18	muted 2:24 12:18	news 22:10 25:13	28:11 32:6 35:2	42:3
mind 12:4,15 15:25	30:16	nitty-gritty 48:15	36:5	panelists 17:20
18:4 34:19 36:4	mutual 27:2	NIXON 2:8	options 40:22	30:25 38:2,5
minimize 8:7		noise 20:13	order 8:20 16:16	43:25 44:20
minority 31:20	N	nonpartisan 44:8	Oregon 16:22	panels 28:7
36:22 40:19,22	name 2:19 14:13	north 13:4,15,19,25	organizations	paraphrased 2:20
minutes 2:23 10:20	16:11,13 19:19	17:1	14:19 42:10 44:4	Parazin 23:25 24:5
29:5	22:2 24:16 25:20	northern 13:21	organize 18:11	part 12:25 13:5
mispronouncing	31:11 39:9 40:14	northernmost	organized 47:10	19:20 20:2 26:23
16:11	42:7 45:14	12:25	original 37:19	43:3 49:7,16
missing 11:23	name's 35:1	NOTE 2:17	Oroville 12:22	partially 39:13
mission 6:16	nation 7:8 15:9,20	notes 47:23	Ortiz 3:5 11:5,13	participate 6:21
months 43:12	15:23 19:20 20:20	noting 29:19	Othello 35:12	participatory 5:24
Morales 3:18 31:7	23:7,9 31:24 34:2	number 7:16 31:20	ought 34:10	particular 18:12
36:11,13,15 37:23	36:3 40:25 41:1	31:24 32:4,7,9	outcome 50:18	48:11
38:7	42:21 43:6,19	42:13	outlined 6:23	particularly 19:1
morning 5:8,13	nation's 17:16	O	outreach 1:7 2:9	particulars 8:14
10:17 11:2,3,13	nations 41:7 42:12	oaths 50:4	5:11	parties 50:14
12:12,17 14:8,9	native 13:11,13	obligation 33:24	overall 8:12 36:23	partisan 42:16 44:5
14:10 16:8,13	21:12 31:24 32:2	obviously 36:3	overlap 39:18	partnerships 27:2
17:24 21:5,19	35:17 37:8,10,15	October 11:14	overview 9:25	parts 9:14
22:1 23:20 25:18	37:17	offer 10:21 46:21	owe 34:5,6	party 50:16
31:1 36:13 40:14	near 39:14	offered 50:13		Pasco 25:20,22,25
41:14 44:21 46:10	nearly 10:4 25:24	official 28:2	P	26:4,8,13,20 27:5
47:11,16,25 49:16	necessarily 17:10	Okanogan 12:23	P 31:11	27:22 28:13,15,18
49:18	necessary 13:8	okay 11:13 12:22	Pacific 1:21 40:16	28:19 29:3,3,11
move 10:24 24:11	need 7:25 8:19,20	17:22 18:6 24:11	PAGE 3:2 4:2	29:14,19 31:12,14
30:11,18	8:22 9:4,5,10,22	27:20 28:5,9	pages 1:11 50:10	31:18,19 33:5,8,9
moved 10:7 11:14	10:6 14:23 16:24	29:25,25 30:13,17	PAILTHORP 2:9	34:7 35:1,11,21
22:11	35:6	34:22,25 38:4	Pamela 3:15 31:6,8	39:9,11,13,19,25
moving 19:7	needed 9:9,22	44:18 46:9,18	31:11	40:4 41:19,22
municipalities 8:8	needs 13:13,21	48:19	pandemic 7:2	45:15,25 48:11
MURRAY 2:10	15:12,17 17:7		panel 11:1,4 17:23	Pasco's 26:4 35:4

45:19	25:15 27:16,18	39:11	pursuit 35:6	reason 22:12
PAUL 2:4	31:4,19 32:17,22	previously 22:17	put 11:20 13:12	received 7:4
pay 22:23	34:7,16,23 36:9	primarily 21:6,15	putting 12:10	recognize 22:4,16
peace 37:21	38:10 40:9 41:11	principles 8:10	puzzle 10:2,3,5,5	34:6
peers 22:15	42:2,5 44:24	priorities 15:5,24	41:17	recognizes 39:17
people 10:21 11:25	POC 25:3	42:11 43:9	<hr/> Q <hr/>	record 28:3 29:23
14:14,20 17:8	point 33:23 35:4,17	prioritize 33:24	question 11:21 12:6	recreate 16:16
18:19,24 19:7	43:18	34:11	44:2,16,19	redistribution 13:9
20:7 21:12 22:22	points 31:12 33:4	prioritizing 42:16	questions 10:23	redistricting 1:2
29:8 31:17,25	39:10	43:18	17:20 20:24 23:16	5:10,12 7:3,20
32:10,12 34:5	political 13:1 15:11	priority 43:12,20	27:14 30:4,21	10:1 13:18 14:17
35:14 36:24 40:17	22:18 24:21 25:6	probability 23:11	38:1 43:24 46:7	14:20,24 16:20
42:25 48:19,23	37:11 44:5 49:17	problem 14:6	quick 33:4	17:5,14 18:19,22
people-of-color	politically 23:12	proceedings 5:4	quickly 29:14	19:8 21:7 26:10
42:13	politicians' 14:24	49:19 50:6,10	quite 45:8	28:10 35:19 40:21
peoples 32:2 34:12	politics 37:12	process 5:24 6:17	quo 19:24	42:8 49:3
37:19	population 7:12,15	10:15 13:1 14:20	quotation 2:20	redrawing 18:14
Peralta 3:20 40:14	7:19,21,24 8:12	19:9,21 25:2	<hr/> R <hr/>	26:11
40:15	8:16 9:16 10:4,12	35:23 48:14 49:17	R 21:5 41:14 50:1	redrawn 13:20
percent 7:13 31:14	13:8 23:4 29:7	produce 6:24	racial 40:20	refer 6:12 33:22
36:18,19,20 37:1	31:15 36:18,23	promise 47:22	racialized 37:18	reflected 17:11
37:9	37:15	promises 7:3	racist 33:10	reflects 22:22
percentage 8:14	populations 21:12	pronouns 22:2	raise 46:16	regarding 9:7
performs 37:4	31:20,21 42:14	proportional 9:10	ran 2:24	Regev 3:7 11:6
perpetuate 34:1	poses 45:20	proportioned 8:11	random 28:7	16:11,12,13
person 2:24 11:14	possibility 23:12	proposal 13:11	Randy 3:21 38:17	region 43:11
11:15 21:22,23	possible 5:25 6:8	proposals 13:10	41:12	registered 1:17
30:2,18	6:24 34:8 37:3,4,5	proposed 16:20	rapid 27:9	27:24 36:19
phonetic 2:19,19	37:6	17:5 32:10	rapidly 26:24	reiterate 34:7
picture 11:25	potentially 40:1	Prosser 35:13	rapist 20:16	39:10
piece 10:5	power 15:11 24:21	protecting 32:5	rarely 13:2	relation 26:20
pieces 10:3,5	25:6 33:11	provide 6:17 44:15	rate 12:3	relationship 21:9
pile 41:19	powers 13:13	44:16	RCW 50:4	relationships 27:8
Piñero 2:6 14:11	practical 7:21 8:7	provided 7:23	reach 32:1	28:22
place 13:12 16:20	precisely 13:12	providing 16:14	reached 11:8	relative 50:15,16
33:7	preparing 46:23	48:24	read 2:20	relatively 8:17
places 35:7	49:12	public 1:7 2:9 3:4	ready 24:2	remarks 3:3 4:3,4,5
platform 2:22	presence 22:19	5:11,22 6:4,9	realized 22:11	4:6,7 46:15,23
players 35:18	President 7:8	46:21 48:13,22,22	really 18:15,22,23	remedies 37:14,15
playing 5:19 17:5	pressure 46:15	49:15	24:24 25:3,7,9	remedy 38:12
please 9:12 10:25	pretty 13:1 16:21	Pullman 35:13	28:13 33:12 41:22	REMEMBERED
11:10 12:4 17:25	18:14	purpose 6:14 7:1	46:20 47:18,24	5:1
19:13 20:23 21:1	prevent 22:14	10:9 22:18		rememberer 34:9
21:4,22 23:23	previous 18:15	pursuant 50:4		removed 13:16

removing 13:18	response 13:23	Sarah 2:2 3:3 5:8	shared 10:12 29:17	sovereigns 35:19
repeat 41:21	17:21 23:18 24:10	Saturday 5:1 47:16	46:24	sovereignty 37:21
report 37:12	29:24 30:9,23	49:16	sharing 23:21	span 43:4,11
reporter 1:17 5:3	38:3 44:17 46:8	saw 19:25	shed 8:21	Spanish 48:25
28:2 50:2	responsive 12:3	scheme 24:20	Sheila 3:12 23:25	speak 13:24 14:11
reporting 1:21	29:10	schism 32:8	24:12,16	18:9 21:21 24:15
50:12	rest 27:6 33:9	School 28:19	Shir 3:7 11:5 16:10	25:19 35:10 39:6
representation	result 20:1	scratch 32:4	16:13	40:6
13:25 17:6,15	review 7:1	screen 47:22	show 8:24,25	speaker 25:15
25:11 26:1,16	reviewing 6:14	Sean 2:10 10:25	shows 9:2	38:20 41:11
31:17 39:22 40:20	Richland 21:11	12:13 14:3 16:9	shrink 9:6	speakers 21:15
40:23 42:15 45:21	26:7,7 29:17	17:25 19:13 21:1	side 35:15	23:20 30:21 33:14
representative 13:2	35:10 39:20	21:22 23:23 25:15	Sign 48:25	Speaking 19:17
13:7 17:10	rid 42:23	27:16 30:5 31:4	signed 10:18 38:13	special 29:3
representatives	rig 42:24	32:17,18 34:16	38:24	specific 39:20
7:17,18 28:23	rigging 14:23	36:9 38:10 40:9	Similarly 47:15	specifically 42:18
40:18	right 17:18 22:12	41:11 42:2 44:24	Simms 4:3 14:10	spelling 2:19
represented 26:9	22:14,19,23 23:6	seat 25:11	46:18,19 47:3,7	spend 49:11
34:13 39:13 40:4	23:19 24:5 26:6	seats 7:10,16	simple 35:4	spending 16:7
representing 26:6	28:5 29:23 30:2	second 15:17 29:8	SIMS 2:5	30:25 38:6 44:21
29:4 39:19	30:14,17,24 32:6	33:13 43:18	single 35:10 40:1	46:11 49:16
represents 29:12	34:12,22 35:13	see 9:16 10:22	sister 35:8	Spindola 3:6 11:5
request 39:12 40:6	38:13 43:23	16:24 18:6 19:6	sitting 47:20	14:5,6,7,9,13
requests 6:2,9	rights 37:16	19:22,24 24:6,24	situation 37:18	split 15:9 23:8,9
44:19	river 26:6 35:9,15	27:14,22 32:10	six 28:22 31:12	24:19 25:22 26:15
reservation 13:16	41:2	42:4 44:9	32:9	31:16,19,25 33:5
13:20,22	Rivory 43:8	seeing 17:22 23:19	size 9:4,6	34:2 42:21
reservations 13:11	RMR 1:17 50:23	30:24 38:4 44:18	slide 9:12	splitting 40:25
36:2	Roach 3:14 27:21	46:9 48:3,11	slow 15:3	Spokane 35:15
reside 28:25	27:22 28:5,9	seen 16:19 32:13	smaller 8:20 10:5	spoken 25:8
resident 45:14	29:22 38:14,22	self-preservation	society 22:24	staff 35:3 49:3,6
residents 7:14,24	Robinson 3:16 31:7	21:16	somebody 27:23	staffers 42:8
8:3,5,18,19,21 9:9	32:21,23 33:3	send 17:16 44:10	28:14	stand 15:4
9:11,18,20,22,23	room 20:11	44:13	somewhat 20:12	stands 19:22
15:4 26:25 45:16	Roxanne 3:10 18:2	sends 33:11	sophisticated 27:2	start 11:6 27:19
49:13	21:3	sense 11:22 12:5	sorry 15:3 16:11	31:8 32:4,11
residing 5:3 50:3	Rules 50:11	separate 26:14 27:5	20:23 34:21 45:9	started 28:17
resources 14:25	run 17:2 20:23	services 48:24	45:13	starting 18:5
17:4		set 50:19	sorts 27:3	state 1:2 5:2,9 7:12
respect 6:20 10:12	S	setting 19:10	source 2:21	7:19 8:13,16 9:2
32:10	S 12:19,22 16:12	Severino 3:11 18:3	south 15:18 43:4	9:16 10:3 12:24
Respectfully 39:12	24:15	21:24 22:1,2	southeastern 16:21	22:20,25 23:3
respond 6:6,13	Sandra 11:5 12:15	share 12:12 18:23	43:5	25:23 32:7 35:7
responding 11:25	12:18	26:25 32:13	southern 13:5 43:3	35:18,22 42:10

49:2,14 50:3,11
stated 24:20
states 7:9
statistics 32:13
status 19:24 35:23
statute 6:18 8:6
stay 20:23 33:20
stick 27:13
stood 11:16
street 22:8 24:25
strong 37:10
strongly 13:11
structure 26:19
structures 27:4
subjected 35:23
submit 27:13 38:7
subtracts 8:21
succeed 35:7
Sue 1:17 5:2 50:2
 50:23
suggested 37:14
summary 10:25
summer 21:8
super 32:25
support 35:3 37:10
Suquamish 21:9
sure 18:19 21:6,11
 26:3,8
surrounding 10:8
SW 1:22
switch-up 38:12
synthesize 6:5
system 42:25
systems 43:17

T

T 50:1,1
table 25:11
Tacoma 5:3 50:3
take 20:8 46:25
taken 1:15 50:6
talk 22:13 42:18
taxes 22:24
teacher 28:19

teal 9:5
technologies 19:5
Tel 1:22
telling 34:4
ten 7:17,21,25 8:16
 9:2 19:21,23
tenure 6:3
term 18:15
terms 10:11 36:23
 50:14
testified 10:22
testifier 12:14
 27:18
testifier's 2:24
testifiers 10:23,24
 16:17
testify 10:18,20
 20:12 27:24,24
 28:3,4 40:17
 47:17
testifying 44:3
 47:16 48:10
testimony 11:11
 12:16 18:5 21:4
 21:25 24:3,9,13
 25:17 27:19 30:8
 31:9 32:22 34:20
 36:8,12 38:8
 40:12 41:13 42:5
 44:23 45:3
thank 5:21 9:24
 11:7 12:9,9,11,19
 12:19 13:23 14:1
 14:2,7,11 16:5,6
 16:14 17:18,23
 18:8 19:10,11,11
 20:22 21:18,18
 23:14,15,20,21
 25:12,13,14,18,25
 26:16 27:11,20
 28:1,9,10 29:21
 29:25 30:25 31:1
 31:11 32:15,16,23
 32:24 33:3 34:14

34:15,25 35:2
 36:5,7 38:5,5,19
 39:4,5,5 40:5,6,8
 41:9,10,14,17,24
 41:25 42:5 43:21
 43:22 44:12,13,20
 44:21 45:3,6,11
 46:4,5,10,10,19
 47:2,8,9,11,12,15
 48:1,17,19 49:1,2
 49:6,9,10,14,15
 49:15,18
thanking 48:23
thanks 18:10 44:3
 48:16
thereof 50:18
thing 11:16 18:22
 33:13
things 5:17 18:24
think 11:15,18,18
 11:21,24,24 12:1
 12:7 17:14 21:10
 24:4 26:19 27:5
 30:2,11 33:19
 45:17,20,22
thinking 33:17
thought 47:9
thoughtful 40:3
 47:10
thoughts 46:23
three 16:17 26:12
 26:13,19,25 29:19
 30:21 31:24
time 2:23,23 10:7
 12:12 16:7,7
 17:23 20:1,21,23
 24:18 27:10,12
 28:8 29:20 31:1,2
 32:15 37:9,22,24
 38:1,5,6 40:8 42:1
 43:24 44:15,21
 46:10,11,21,22
 47:11,17,19 48:16
 49:10,11

tirelessly 49:4
today 5:22 9:7 10:9
 14:12 15:4 18:20
 19:22 22:14 24:16
 32:20 39:6 40:7
 42:18 46:22 47:9
 47:16 48:12,16,22
today's 7:1
told 7:9 47:25
Toll 1:23
Tomaskin 3:9 18:2
 19:15,17,19 20:22
top 44:6
topic 5:13 9:7
town 13:2
towns 8:15
trade-offs 10:14
transcribed 50:7
transcript 1:5 50:8
 50:9
transcription 50:8
translation 48:24
transmission 2:22
transparency 6:20
transparent 6:17
transplanted 21:8
transportation
 29:16
treaty 37:21
Tri-Cities 14:15
 26:13,21 27:6
 28:25 29:2,18
 33:22 39:14,24
 45:25
tribal 13:16 16:2
 36:1 41:7
Tribe 21:9,10 34:3
tribes 13:16 35:18
true 50:9
truly 28:19
truth 32:11
try 8:10 10:14 30:6
 30:12,18 38:11
 41:16,18 46:2

trying 20:12 41:22
turn 11:10 21:4,25
 24:2,8,12 30:7
 32:21 36:11 40:11
 41:13 45:3,5
turning 12:15 18:4
 34:19
two 2:23 10:20
 20:12 26:14,15
 29:5 31:16,20
 38:12 39:23 45:20
type 17:15

U

U.S 7:10,18 11:17
undemocratic
 13:14
understand 13:9
 28:20 37:17
understanding
 37:12
understood 2:18
undo 43:14
unfortunately
 19:23
unique 35:24
united 45:18,24
 46:3
updating 29:2
urban 29:8,14 40:3
urge 36:1 45:23
 46:1
urging 45:16
use 11:22
usually 19:24

V

valley 15:18 20:6
 23:5 40:16,19
 42:21
valued 10:16
values 6:15,16
vast 15:15 44:7
Vaughn 11:5 12:15

12:19,22
VERBATIM 1:5
verified 2:21
video 5:17,19 11:10
 12:15 18:4 21:4
 21:25 24:3,8,12
 27:19 30:7,11,13
 30:16 31:8 32:21
 34:19,22 36:11
 40:11 41:13 42:4
 45:3,5
video's 24:7
villages 15:21 41:2
 43:7
vital 49:17
voice 15:5 16:15
 31:21 35:11
voices 6:18 22:18
 23:2,10,13 31:22
 32:2
vote 13:8,13 24:16
 37:8
voters 36:19,20,24
 36:25 37:1
voting 33:11 37:5
 37:16
voting-rights 37:14

W

WA 1:17,22 50:24
WAC 50:12
walking 24:24
Walkinshaw 2:6
 4:4 14:11 47:5,6
Walla 33:16,16,16
 33:17,19,19 34:8
 34:8 46:1,1
want 6:14 8:24
 16:14,19 23:7,8,8
 23:10,16,20 25:16
 27:23 28:10 29:21
 30:20,25 37:25
 39:10 41:21 42:18
 42:23 43:18,23

44:15 45:16 46:6
 46:20 47:18 49:9
wanted 8:25 18:9
 18:20 21:6,11
 33:4,12
war 37:20
Washington 1:2
 5:2,4,9 6:1 7:17
 7:24 9:2 14:18,21
 16:21 17:6,13
 20:4 22:20,21,23
 25:5 31:20 42:9
 42:10 43:15,16
 49:2,13 50:3
way 26:3 39:16
 41:3
ways 39:16
We'll 30:12
we're 7:16 10:18
 11:6 17:15 22:13
 24:11 26:23 27:17
 30:6 33:1 38:11
 38:15 39:3,20
 40:10 47:20,22,23
 47:23 48:9

we've 15:25 27:1
weakens 35:5
weigh 10:14
weighed 32:13
weight 23:13
welcome 5:10,23
 6:19 10:15 11:12
 18:7 19:16 24:14
 31:10 33:2,12
 34:24 36:14 39:3
 39:21 40:13 42:6
 45:7

well-connected
 26:23
west 26:7 32:8
wheel 16:16
whims 35:12
white 19:25 20:3
wholeheartedly

16:17
wholly 35:21
willing 44:10
wish 46:15
wit 5:4
WITNESS 50:19
words 2:18 18:20
work 16:3 26:1,17
 39:17 41:15,18,20
 48:20 49:8
worked 11:17 49:3
workers 20:7
working 19:2 30:14
 48:4,20 49:12
worries 16:12
worry 14:23
worth 29:18
written 38:7
wrongs 43:15
www.capitolpaci...
 1:24

X

Y

Yakima 13:2 15:8
 15:8,8,14,16,18
 15:18,19,20 19:20
 20:3,5,6,19 22:5
 22:16 23:4,6,7,9
 24:22 25:2,4
 31:24 34:2 36:3
 36:17 37:13 40:16
 40:19,25 41:1,6
 42:19,21,21,21
 43:2,3,5,6 45:18
 45:22 46:1
yeah 31:5 38:23
 43:14,17 44:11
year 7:5 10:1
years 8:16 19:21,23
 28:15
younger 17:3

Z

Z 27:21 28:5,9
Zahra 3:14 27:22
 29:22 38:14,21
Zoom 1:10 47:21

0

1

1 1:11 7:13,25
 50:10
10 18:13
10:00 5:2
10:59 49:19
11 3:5
12 9:15
12th 9:21
13 9:15
13th 9:17
14 3:6 9:15
14.6 7:13
14th 9:20 15:9 22:9
 22:10 24:19 41:3
 42:22
15 9:14 50:20
157,000 9:18,22
157,251 8:5
15th 9:20 15:9 22:6
 24:17,19 36:15,21
 37:2 42:22
16 3:7 9:15
16th 9:21 14:15
 25:23 28:14,16,23
 29:10 33:8 39:17
 39:22 41:20 45:15
18 3:8
1892 13:16
19 3:9
1st 7:5

2

2019 11:14
2020 7:25
2021 1:13 5:1,12
 40:21 50:7,20
21 3:10,11 36:20

24 3:12
2401 1:22
25 3:13 37:1
27 3:14
2781 1:17 50:24
29 36:19

3

30 10:17 14:18 29:5
30-plus 28:15
300,000 26:24
308-14-130 50:12
31 3:15
32 3:16
34 3:17
352-2054 1:22
36 3:18
360 1:22,22
38 3:19

4

4 5:14 13:19
40 3:20
407-0148 1:23
41 3:21
42 3:22
45 3:23
46 4:3
47 4:4,5
48 4:6,7
49 7:22 8:3
4th 1:8 9:8,13 12:2
 12:7 15:5 17:1,8
 22:5 36:16

5

5 1:13 3:3 5:1
5.28.010 50:4
50 1:11 42:9 44:4
 50:10
52 36:18
54 31:14
5th 16:23 50:7

6

7

7 9:15
7,705,281 7:24
7.7 8:18
70,000 29:7
705-6539 1:22
770,000 9:9
770,528 8:2
7th 9:20

8

8 9:14
80,000 35:14
800 1:23
85.5 37:9
8th 9:17 14:14 26:5

9

9 9:15
95.9 37:9
98502 1:22
9th 9:17,17 25:22
28:14,16,23 29:9
39:17,22 41:20